
MINUTES 
WORK SESSION 
JUNE 1, 2006 

 
The Aberdeen Board of Commissioners met Thursday, June 1, 2006 at 5:30 

p.m.  for  their  regular Work Session.   Members  present were Commissioners Pat 
Ann  McMurray,  Robbie  Farrell,  Arthur  Parker,  Donna  Shannon  and  Walter 
Wright.   Mayor Elizabeth Mofield was  unable  to  attend  due  to  another meeting.  
Others in attendance were Town Manager Bill Zell, Town Clerk Nancy Matthews, 
Planning  Director  Giles  Hopkins,  Deputy  Planning  Director  Ben  Warren  and 
Kristen Beatty, Reporter for the Pilot Newspaper.   There were several developers 
who were also in attendance. 
 

Mayor Protem Farrell  called  the Work Session  to order.     He stated  there 
were several items for Board review and discussion. 
 
1.  CDBG  Infrastructure  for  Sewer  in  Midway  Community  –  Public 

Hearing scheduled for June 12th. 
 

Manager Zell  informed  the Board this  is  the  infrastructure grant  that 
the Town had previously applied to receive and was not chosen in the first 
round.  He stated the State had money left over and seven more grants were 
awarded with Aberdeen being one of them.  He stated that Hobbs, Upchurch 
is  doing  all  the  preliminary work  for  the  sewer  infrastructure.     He  stated      
a Public Hearing is required and will be held at the June 12th regular Board 
meeting.  Agenda item as Public Hearing. 

 
2.  Proposed  FY20062007  Budget  –  Public  Hearing  scheduled  for  June 

12th. 
 

Manager Zell stated the Board had met several  times for  review  of  
the proposed budget and he has presented  to  them a balanced budget.   He 
stated  the  Public  Hearing  has  been  scheduled  for  the  regular  June  12th   
Board meeting.  He stated he will give the Budget Message at this time. 
 

Commissioner Wright  requested  if  there  are  no  objections  from  the 
public, that the Board consider adoption later in the meeting.  He stated this 
would keep  from  having  to meet  again  just  to  adopt  the  budget.   Agenda 
item as Public Hearing. 

 



 
 
3.  Ordinance  GP#0601  concerning  an  annexation  agreement  between 

Aberdeen and Pinebluff – Public Hearing scheduled for June 12th. 
 

Planning Director Giles Hopkins stated after quite a lengthy time, he 
has been able to work out an agreement with Pinebluff as to who will annex 
and where.   He stated this annexation agreement was necessary in order to 
allow  the  future  satellite  annexation  of  the  proposed  Legacy  Golf  Links 
Development to occur.  He stated that Pinebluff will approve this agreement 
at their June regular Board meeting.  He stated the agreement will be a ten
year  agreement.    The  reason  for  the  tenyear  agreement  is  due  to  future 
potential  development  in  this  area.   Agenda  item as Public Hearing  and 
New Business. 

 
4.  Application for Site Plan Review SP#0601, Phase II, reconfiguration of 

the area between Food Lion and  the proposed Mexican Restaurant  to 
include ten (10) parking spaces and a dumpster enclosure. 

 
Deputy Planning Director Ben Warren stated Primax Properties, LLC 

has submitted an application for site plan review of Phase II of the Sandhills 
Shopping  Center  development  where  Perry  Brothers  Tire  was  formerly 
located.  He stated the plans as submitted include the reconfiguration of the 
area between Food Lion and the proposed Mexican Restaurant to include ten 
(10)  parking  spaces  and  a  dumpster  enclosure.    He  stated  additional 
landscaping  has  been  provided  to  lessen  the  visual  impact  on  adjacent 
properties.    He  stated  the  developers  have  satisfied  and  exceeded 
requirements  as  set  forth  in  the Town’s Zoning Ordinance.   He  stated  the 
Planning  Board  has  reviewed  the  site  plan  and  made  a  unanimous 
recommendation  for  approval  by  the Town Board.   Agenda  item as New 
Business. 

 
5.  Application  for  Site  Plan  Review  SP#0603  for  a  proposed  road 

designed  to  provide  access  to  Starbucks  Coffee  and  the  proposed 
Hampton Inn & Suites. 

 
Planning Director Giles Hopkins  stated  that  Primax Properties, LLC 

has  submitted  an  application  for  site  plan  review  of  a  proposed  road, 
currently labeled as “Columbus Drive” and “Street A”, designed to provide 
access  to  Starbucks  Coffee,  the  proposed  “Hampton    Inn  &  Suites”,  and 



other future development.  He stated the proposed road includes a fifty (50) 
foot  rightofway,  thirtytwo (32)  foot paving width and concrete curb and 
gutter.    He  stated  existing  trees will  be  preserved  along  both  sides  of  the 
street to provide adequate buffering to meet the requirements as set forth in 
the  Town’s  Zoning  Ordinance.    He  stated  additional  screening  will  be 
installed in the event  that the natural buffer is removed or fails to meet  the 
requirements of the ordinance.  He stated that all NCDOT requirements have 
been  met.    He  stated  the  Planning  Board  has  reviewed  and  unanimously 
recommended  for  approval  to  the  Town  Board.    Agenda  item  as  New 
Business. 

 
6.  Application  for Site Plan Review SP#0604  for  the proposed Hampton 

Inn  &  Suites  to  be  located  directly  behind  the  Aberdeen  Commons 
Shopping Center. 

 
Planning  Director  Giles  Hopkins  stated  that  Burton  Engineering 

Associates has submitted an application for site plan review of the proposed 
Hampton Inn & Suites to be located directly behind the Aberdeen Commons 
Shopping Center.  He stated a Conditional Use Permit was approved for the 
hotel on January 17th and  the site plan meets all of  the requirements as set 
forth  in  the  Town’s  Zoning  Ordinance  and  Conditional  Use  Permit, 
including parking, landscaping, setbacks, stormwater management, erosion 
control,  etc.    He  also  stated  that  additional  sidewalks  will  be  constructed 
along the section of the site fronting on Columbus Drive.  Agenda item as 
New Business. 

 
7.  Proposed  Zoning  Code  Text  Amendment  ZA#0601  regarding  the 

addition of  Section 155.071  SIDEWALKS  to  the Town’s Zoning Code 
concerning sidewalk requirements in all zoning districts. 

 
Planning Director Hopkins  informed  the Board,  upon  review by  the 

Planning  Board,  a  motion  was  made  to  revise  the  amendment  as  it  was 
written to address the concerns raised by Town Attorney, Michael Brough.  
He stated he had contacted Mr. Brough regarding these revisions and he is 
currently  in  the process of making  the necessary changes.   He stated  these 
revisions will be presented to the Planning Board on June 15th for review and 
recommendation to the Town Board. 

 
 
 



 
 
7a.  Zoning Code Text Amendment ZA#0602 regarding SECTION 155.049 

IH Industrial District (Heavy). 
 
    Planning  Director  Hopkins  informed  the  Board  he  had  received  a 

request to subdivide a property that has multiple existing adjacent buildings 
in a IH Industrial District  that is being planned.   He stated the property in 
question  is  the  old  Colonial  Abrasive  Plant.    He  stated  the  IH  District 
requires side yard setbacks of 15 feet and rear setbacks of 25 feet and front 
yard of 25  feet.   He  stated,  due  to  the  location of  adjacent building  to  the 
proposed  lot or parcel,  it  is not possible  to approve the   subdivision of  the 
project as desired and still meet the side setback requirements of 15 feet.  He 
stated a Public Hearing has been scheduled for the June 12th Board meeting.  
Item  will  then  go  to  the  Planning  Board  for  their  review  and  their 
recommendation  back  to  the  Town  Board.    Agenda  item  as  Public 
Hearing.   
 

8.  Water Purchase Contract with County of Moore. 
 

Manager  Zell  informed  the  Board  that  this  is  the  contract  for  bulk 
water purchase  from Aberdeen  to  the County.   He stated  it  is  a  threeyear 
contract.   He stated for  the last  ten days,  the County has been pulling over 
600,000  gallons  of water  per  day, which  is  over  the  limit  as  stated  in  the 
contract.  He stated the Town may have to drop this back to 400,000 gallons.  
He  stated  this water  contract  needs  to  be  approved  at  the  June  12th  Board 
meeting.    He  stated  the  County  approved  the  contract  at  their    May  15th 
Board meeting.  Agenda item as Consent. 

 
9.  Other Business 
 

a.  North  Carolina  Governor’s  Highway  Safety  Program  Local 
Governmental Resolution. 

 
Manager  Zell  stated  the  Board  needed  to  adopt  this  Resolution  in 
order  to  receive  $5,357.00  from  the  North  Carolina  Governor’s 
Highway  Safety  Program  to  purchase  nightuse  flashlights  and 
reflective vests for the police department. 

 
 



 
 

b.  Manager Zell stated he had discussed with the Planning Department 
pertaining  to  items/issues  forthcoming.    He  stated  due  to  a  light 
agenda,  he  asked  that  the  Board  forgo  the  July  regular  Board 
meeting.   He stated the next Work Session would be August 3rd. The 
consensus  of  the  Board  was  in  favor  of  this  request.    No  regular 
Board meeting will be held in July.   

 
10.  Adjourn 
 

With  no  further  items  of  business,  a  motion  was  made  by 
Commissioner  Parker,  seconded  by  Commissioner  Wright,  to  adjourn  the 
Work Session.  Motion unanimously carried. 

 
 
 
____________________________       ____________________________ 
Nancy M. Matthews, Town Clerk       Robert A. Farrell, Mayor Protem  


